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September 9, 2010
The Honorable Bob Ferguson 

Chair, King County Council

Room 1200

C O U R T H O U S E

Dear Councilmember Ferguson:

In response to heightened risk of Green River flooding due to the structural weakness identified at the Howard Hanson Dam, a total of $34.6 million dollars was appropriated last year to ensure continued operation of key county services located in at-risk facilities in the Green River flood area.  Approximately $16.3 million of the budgeted $34.6 million was used to prepare for the 2009-2010 flood season.  Enclosed is a supplemental ordinance to disappropriate the remaining $11.2 million of budget authority in the Green River Flood Mitigation fund and $7.1 million from the Wastewater Treatment Capital Fund.  The $7.1 million Wastewater Treatment Capital Fund disappropriation is made possible through the use of $3.4 million of 2009 and 2010 operating budget available to cover the cost of flood preparation while expending only about $300,000 from the capital appropriation.  

The successful effort to prepare for the 2009-2010 flood season reduces the requirements for additional work to prepare for the 2010-2011 flood season.  The attached legislation includes a budget proposal primarily designed to maintain and preserve the flood mitigation investments made last year.  In addition, funding to prepare the Animal Control facility for flood risk and to move the Elections operations back to the Earlington Building is included.  The scope of the $4.4 million proposed budget is described in Attachment A to this letter.

The Green River Flood Mitigation fund disappropriation request responds to expenditure restriction 5 (ER5) in Ordinance 16680, amended by Ordinance 16860 to read: 

“any funds remaining from this appropriation on September 30, 2010 shall be disappropriated and reappropiated to a flood prevention reserve fund within the general fund financial plan to provide for ongoing Green River valley flood mitigation purposes.” 
Background

Extraordinary rainfall in the Cascade Range during January 2009 caused the reservoir levels behind the Howard Hanson Dam to reach record levels.  When the pool levels were lowered the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) discovered visible damage to the earthen right abutment.  The damage to the right abutment forced the USACE to restrict the elevation of the Howard Hanson Dam pool level to less than 50 percent of its design capacity.  To assure King County could perform essential governmental services the County Council adopted a $34,624,674 supplemental budget, Ordinance 16680, for flood protection and preparedness in the Green River valley and to create a comprehensive strategy to mitigate impacts to county services.

Green River Flood Risk Status
On July 30, 2010 Colonel Anthony Wright, USACE Seattle District, announced a significant modification to the previously anticipated permanent repairs to the Howard Hanson Dam.  Rather than constructing the concrete cut off wall as initially planned, the solution now appears to be placement of additional drains and a drain tunnel as the permanent repair.  President Obama signed legislation on July 29th providing a $44 million appropriation for Howard Hanson Dam repairs.  The USACE cautions that the repairs will not be started until fall or winter of 2010.  Even with the increased confidence in the dam the USACE states there is still around a 1 in 60 chance of flooding in the lower Green River Valley.  The 2010-2011 winter is predicted to be a La Nina year, meaning that higher than normal precipitation is anticipated for the Pacific Northwest.

2010-2011 Green River Flood Appropriation

A facilities assessment report, which included a flooding mitigation strategy for the next 3-5 years, was recently transmitted to the County Council.  To implement the flooding mitigation strategies for the upcoming flood season, the enclosed ordinance requests $4.4 million to be appropriated from the Green River Flood Mitigation reserve.  Of the total, approximately $2 million will cover lease and operating costs of space obtained for flood evacuees including Park Place, the AOC, Renton Technical College, and the Plemmons building.  Contracts to maintain emergency power and flood walls around county owned facilities including the Maleng Regional Justice Center, the Aukeen courthouse, the Earlington building, the Blackriver building, and the Sunset flood stray site cost an additional $500,000.  In addition, approximately $340,000 is included to implement flood protection measures at the Regional Animal Services Facility in Kent that were not undertaken during the 2009-2010 flood season due to the uncertainty of King County’s continued role in animal control services.  The budget request also includes approximately $525,000 to move Elections’ operations back to Earlington, planned for June 2011, and about $500,000 funding for Green River flood mitigation staffing in the Facilities Management Division, the Office of Emergency Management and the Office of Information Resource Management (OIRM ).  The supplemental also includes $100,000 for communications to increase flood risk awareness in the affected areas and a 10 percent contingency budget is proposed for unanticipated flood preparation costs that may be identified during the year.  Attachment A provides a more detailed description of these requests.  
Financing of 2009 and subsequent flood preparation costs will continue to depend temporarily upon bond anticipation notes.  This temporary solution affords the time necessary to pursue reimbursement from FEMA and other funding sources.  General obligation bonds will be issued for costs deemed non-reimburseable from Federal sources.  Bond sizing decisions will also be influenced by General Fund debt cap limitations.  Repayment periods will be relatively short due to the nature of flood preparation work which does not yield a permanent asset.

If you have any questions about our planning efforts or budget changes included in the proposed supplemental ordinance, please contact Dwight Dively, Director, Office of Management and Budget and the Office of Strategic Planning and Performance Management, at 206-263-9727. 
I certify that funds are available.

Sincerely,

Dow Constantine

King County Executive

Enclosures

cc
King County Councilmembers



ATTN:  Tom Bristow, Chief of Staff




  Anne Noris, Clerk of the Council

Fred Jarrett, Deputy County Executive, King County Executive Office (KCEO)
Dwight Dively, Office of Management and Budget (OMB), and Office of Strategic 
    Planning and Performance Management

Toni, Rezab, Deputy Director, OMB


Sid Bender, Budget Supervisor, OMB

Tesia Forbes, Budget Analyst, OMB

Caroline Whalen, County Administrative Officer, Department of Executive 

    Services (DES)

Kathy Brown, Director, Facilities Management Division, DES


Christie True, Director Designee, Department of Natural Resources and Parks (DNRP)\


Pam Elardo, Interim Director, Wastewater Treatment Division, DNRP
